T

O o 3 &t B W R

TR ST C SN NC T YC SR Y SR NC SRS G SN S P GGG P PP
OO\)O\U\-&LA{\JMO_\OOG\EO\W_-&LHNHO
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" UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
/ W'ESTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON _

- AT SEATTLE
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA | - NO. CROS-OZ%RSM
_ Plamtiff oy o
_ | V. - ) . SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT'

JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN, - o |
CHARLES H. WILK, and
MATTHEW G. KRANE, .

| | : Defen&ants. '

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT o
g COUNT |
(Conspxracy to Defraud IRS)

1. Bcgmmng at a time unknown, but no later than in or about June 1999, and

_cdminuing until in or about August 2006, at Seattle, Washington, within the Western

District of Washiﬁgton and e}sewhere, JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H.
WILK, and others known and unknown, did knowingly conspire, combine, confederate

and agree to defraud the United States and an agency theréof to wit, the Internal Revénue

|| Service (heremafter, “IRS”) of the United States Department of Treasury, for the purpose -

of 1mpedmg, 1rnpa1r1ng, defealmg and obstructmg the lawful governmental functions of
the IRS in the ascertamment, evaluatlon, assessment, and collecmon of incomes taxes,

interest, and panaltiés.
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" L. INTRODUCTION o
A, Defendants and Other Relevant Parties.

At all times relevant to this Supersedmg Indtctrnent

2. ~ Quellos Group, L.L.C. (heremafter “Quellos”), formerly known as Quadra
Capital Management L.P., was an investment management services ﬁrm founded inor
about 1994 and headquartered in Seattle, Washington. | 7

3. Defendant JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN was a founder and Chief Executive -
Officer of Quellos JEFFREY L GREENSTEIN has a baohelors degree in ﬁnance and
extensive experlenee dealing in complex securn:les and derivative markets. Priorto =
founding Quellos, JEFFREY . GREENSTEIN was a General Partner of another
registered investment advisory ﬁrrn that provided alternative rnvestment strategies
through the use of derivatives and hedging transaetlons Prewous to that JEFFREY L.
GREENSTEIN had been affiliated with a natrona} mvestrnent adv1sory firm, marketmg
derivative securities to institutional clients. T |

4. - Beginning in or about 1996, JEFFREY L. GREENSTEIN gained knowledge
and experience in tax shelters through work with certain nationai acoonnting ﬁrms. ontax N
shelter strateg;es to include, among others, FLIP (Foreign Leveraged Investment
Program), OPIS (Offshore Portfolio Investment Strategy) and CDS (Contrngent Deferred .
Swaps). JEFFREY 1 GREENSTEIN with others at Quellos aSSISted natlonal aeeountmg
firms by designing aspects of FLIP and OPIS and provided execution services in

connection with approximately 150 1nd1v1dual FLIP and OPIS transactrons JEFFREY I

_GREENSTEIN with others at Quellos, also prometed and prowded exeeutlon services
for a number of CDS transactions. Through JEFFREY L GREENSTEIN’S work on the

various tax shelters, Quei}os earned tens of millions of dollars in i"ees Through .
JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN’s involvement in FLIP and OPIS alone Quelios earned
between $25 million and $50 million in fees. In addition, JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN -
gained fnrther knewledge about tax shelters by pereonally participating in a FLIP eheiter |

for himself.
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5. “ Quellos Cuétoms Strategies, LLC (hereir_rafter ‘_‘Q.CS'”),‘ was formed in or
about March 1999 as a Wholly owned subsidiary of Quellos. QCS was fermed with the

goal of providing customized services to high net»-Werth individuals and families,

Jincluding designing and implementing customized tax shelter strategies to minimize or

defer payment of taxes. Through QCS JEFFREY I 'GREENSTEIN sought to capture a
part of the lucrative tax shelter market from the national accountmg firms for themselves
JEFF REY L GREENSTEIN also sought to use these tax shelter strategies as a means to

attract Wealthy ehents to the ﬁrm who could then be persuaded to invest the1r assets with

Quellos, 1hereby expandmg Quellos’s investment busmess One such tax shelter strategy |

_ deveioped and 1mp1emented by QCS was a strategy that came to be known as “POINT”

(Portfoho Optimized INvestment Transactlon)

6. Defendant CHARLES H. WILK, a iawyer with a Masters Degree in tax

'Iaw joined Quellos in or about June 1999 as a prlnerpai As part of his duties,

CHARLES H. WILK directed QCS’s tax shelter busmess Prior to joining Quellos
CHARLES H WILK was a senior manager with a natlonal aceountmg firm, whose duties
included prov1d1ng tax shelter strategies for the accountmg ﬁrm s Wealthy clients.
Previous to his position at the accounting firm, CHARLES H. WILK was an associate in
the tax department of a national law firm. - | | o

7. ‘Eurbpean American Investment'HoIdings NV was incorporated in or.about |
June 1999 i in the Nelherlands Antilles. European A,merrean Investrnent Holdmgs NV was |
a holding company under which a group of eompan;es known as European American |
Investment Group (heremafter “Euram”) was organized. Euram was formed by Amerrcan
and European investors, in part, to acquire an Austnan bank, which came to be knewn as
European American Investment Bank AG. -

- 8. In or about 1999, prmmpals from Quellos 1ncludmg JEFFREY 1.

GREENSTEIN became shareholders in Furam and stood to proﬁt from Eurarn s
busmess |

9. Of the other Buram companies, two Un_ite'd. Kingdom-based subsidiarieé,
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European American Corporate ServicesLimited axid lf,uropean American Advisers"
Limited, focused on adv1smg and prewchng structured financial products for h1gh net
worth 1nd1v1duals ‘The key members of the management of Euram included: -
~a. . CD. Eurarn s Chief Executwe Officer;
b. 1.S., Euram’s Head of Tax and Structured Products and
SNV ,R.P_., Eurar_n s Head of Risk Management and Alternatwe

Intrestfnehts - ' | o | o
| 1()... | Begmmng in or about late 1999 and continuing through in or abcut 2002,
CD., 1S, and R.P, of Euram ass;sted Quellos by provxdmg execut10n servrces such as
draftmg transaetlona_l documents and ﬁndmg and approprratmg offshere shell companies,

in furtherance of tax shelter Strategies developed by QCS. Euram earned large fees for its

participation in the tax shelter transecttons developed and marketed by QCS generally

% of the tax loss desired by the taxpayer client. _ _
ll. -~ Beginning in or about 1999 and continuing through in or abcut 2000, |

Partner L.S. of Law Firm C.S. & M. LLP provided legal advice to JEFFREY .

GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK with respect to the development and

1mplementat10n of POINT, and issued legal opinion letters to at least four clients who

'- entered mto POINT tax shelter transactions.

12. . In 2001 and 2002 Law Firm B C LLP provrded 1egal opinion letters toat -

least two clients who entered into POINT tax shelter transactions.

| B... The POINT Tax Shelter. '

13.  Beginning in or about 1999 and cchtinuing through in or about 2001,
JEFFREY L GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK designed, marketed and
1rnplemented the tax shelter strategy known as POINT. In or about 2000 and 2001 six
POINT tax shelters were executed on behalf of ﬁve Wealthy mdrvrduals

~a. - In 2000, Client M Z. executed a POINT tax shelter transaction with
Quellos Cllent M.Z.’s POINT tax shelter transactron was known as “Torens.”
- b. : In 2000 Clrent R.J. executed a POINT tax shelter transaction with
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
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Queilos Cllent R J’s POINT tax shelter transactlon was known as “Reka »
¢. . In2000, Cllent B J. executed a POTNT tax sheiter transaetlon With

Quellos Client B.J.’s POINT tax shelter transactlon was known as “Burgundy ”

‘ d. In 2000 and then in 2001, Chent M.S. executed two POINT tax

shelter transact}ons with Quellos Client M.S.’s POINT tax shelter transactions Were

known respectweiy as “Platinum” and “Cobalt ”

e. In200L, Client H.S. executed a POINT tax shelter transaction with
Queiios. Client H.S.’s POINT tax shelter transaction was kn_own as “Tltamum.f’

14, The total amount of fees paid by the clients to partieipate in POINT was |
approx1mateiy $86 million. The ellents who participated in the POINT tax shelter
collectively sought to shelter approximately $2 billion in cap1ta1 gams and avoid payment
of more than $400 million in federal taxes

15.  The objective of POINT was to offset capltai gams and defer and reduce
taxes on those gains. In furtherance of this tax saving objective, JEFFREY 1.
GRBENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK, with the assistance of C.D., 1.S., and R P, of
E.uram,. designed a series of transactions and executed those tran'sactions on behalf of |
their clients in order to obtain'the desired tax benefits. While each of the six POINT - -
transactzons varied somewhat in actuai implementation, they typlcally 1ncluded the |
followmg steps: | o

a.  During late 1999 and continuing through 2000, an “offshore
mvestment fund” purportedly purchased shares of stock in well known publicly- traded
technology compames The fund then formed a number of offshore partnership entities
and contnbuted poruons of its portfoho of stock to such partnershlps These partnershlp
entities were known generlcaily as “Spemai Purpose Vehicles™ or “SPVS ?

: -b. : The fund then purportedly caused each SPV to issue “Covered

Warrants” agamst their respectwe baskets of stocks. The Covered Warrants operated like |

a long-dated call, meanmg that an outside investor could purchase the Warrant for a

premium in retu:h for the right in five years to purchase the stocks in the SPV at a set.
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price. In this case, eaeh Covered Warrant was purponedly piaced w1th a “bank” or some
other financial institution that purportedly paid mllhons in premiums to the SPVs for the o
Warrants. The institution then was purportediy respon51bie for further marketlng the -
Warrant to others,

c. Once the Warrants were 1ssued a U S taxpayer acqulred from the :
offshore fund the partnership interests in an SPV. At the time the chent acqmred hlS or
her partnersth, the technology stocks that the fund had purportedly co_ntrlbuted fo the _
partnership had fallen in value and, thefefore, the partnership had built-in, unfealize’d
losses. . | | _ | | _

d. After the client acquired the pa:rtnersth, he or she centrlbuted to the
partnership his or her own assets. These assets typically other stock that the cllent
deszred to sell, had unreahzed gains. o |

e.  Shortly after the client contrlbuted hlS or her own assets wu:hm a
matter of two or three months, al] or most of the assets within the partnership were so]d
mcludmg the purported shares of technology stock with the built-in loss: The sale of the

pre-existing portfolio also purport'edly triggered a cancellation of the “Covered Wai‘raht”

|| under terms that ultlmateiy resulted in no economic lmpaei on the partnershlp or the chent

who acquired the partnershlp The client then offset the gams from his or her contmbuted i
assets with the alleged losses stemmmg from the pre- ex1stzng portfollo

f. ‘Subsequently, the client was able to draw out of the partnersh:p, tax.
free, the proceeds up to the client’s basis in the partnersth, or continue to mamtam the
proceeds within the partnership tax free, and invest it further. |

C. IRS Treatment of Tax Shelters.

16.  During all times relevant to this Supersedmg Indictment, JEFFREY L. _
GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK knew and understood that tax shelters that the
IRS eoncluded were designed, marketed and implemented solely for the purpose of
proiriding clients with a way to defer or reduce tax, would be challenged by the IRS. In o
that eveht, the IRS Would'seek o collect the ziripaid taxes plus' interest, and might also
e
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seek to :mpose substantial penalt:es upon the clients. o
17 Durlng all times relevant to this Supersedmg Indlctment JEFFREY L

GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK knew and understood that in order fora tax |
shelter strategy to survive challenge by the IRS, taxpayers were generally requ1red to '
demonstrate the fo}lowmg |

a. Fzrst the individual transactlons that comprised the sheiter pessessed
real economic substanee and were not sham transactions; .

b. Second the transactlons that compnsed the shelter were not pre-
arranged and orchestrated solely for the purpose of obtaining a tax beneﬁt and
| ~ ¢. . Third, the various parties involved in the transactions had a bona ﬁde '.

business purpose for engaging in the transaetlons i.e., that the client and others had a

.'reasonabie proﬁt motive to take part in the transacuon other than for tax savmgs

18. - Durmg all times relevant to this Supersedmg Indlctment }EFFREY L.
GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H WILK also knew and understood in the event that the

IRS dlsallowed a beneﬁt obtamed as a result of a tax shelter, the IRS could 1 Impose

substanual penalties ranging from 20% to 40% of the underpayment attributable to the
sheiter unless the clazmed tax beneﬁt was supported by an mdependent legal oplnlon
reasonably relied upon by the taxpayer in good faith. Therefore, JEFFREY L
GREENS_TEIN and CHARLES H. WILK knew and understood that in order to induce

clients to participate in a shelter, and to shield the clients from possible penalties, 'they had

to obtain legal opinion letters from reputable law ﬁrms oone'luding' that a shelter will at

least “more likely than not” survive IRS chalienge .
| - IL OBJECT OF THE CONSPIRACY |
19. Itwasa part of and an object of the_eonspiracy that-JEF_FREY I
GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK,. together with others knowi't and unknown, to

unlawfully and knowingly defraud and attempt to defreud the IRS by impeding, '
impairing, defeating and obstruetmg the lawful govemmental functaons of the IRS in the
ascertamment evaluatlon assessment and oolleetlon of income 1axes mterest and '
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penalties by des;gnmg, marketmg, 1mp1ementmg, and defendmg and aldmg in the defense |
before the IRS of a fraudulent tax Sheiter known as POINT
III MANNER AND MEANS OF THE CONSPIRACY

R 2.0-.-  Itwasa part of the conspiracy that JEFFREY L. GREENSTEIN and __ o
CHARLES H WILK designed and deveioped the POINT tax shelter to con51st of a pre- - o
ordamed series of sham transactlons executed in precise steps in accordance with the _
directions of JEFF REY 1. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK for the sole purpose
of provzdmg a means for Weaithy individuals to reduce and/or defer the payment of taxes
on capital gains 1ncome ' | | '

21. It was further a part of the consplracy that JEFFREY I GREENSTEIN and
CHARLES H. WILK 1mp1emented the POINT tax shelter in a manner that mlnnmzed |
costs to Quellos and maximized their proﬁts. Specifically, JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN o
and CHARLES H. WILK knew and understood that the procurement of sufficient |
amounts of actuallstocks to generate the losses for theP'OINT ciients would cost more =

than they or others involved in the zmplementation of the shelter were able or wﬁhng to

| pay. Furthermore }EFFREY L. GREENSTEIN and CHARL}ZS H. WILK were

unsuccessful in 1ocat1ng any bona ﬁde independent th1rd-party who had real assets w1th o
su_fﬁczent bullt—m losses W1ng to participate in the P_OINT- transactlon. Therefore, |
JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK caused the creation of a fictional
“offshore in{/estiﬁent fund” with a ﬁctional porftfolio of stocks that had. been obtaieed
through a series of shain paper trensactioﬁs_ in which no stocks and no money ever
exchanged hands | | . | _

22, It was further a part of the consplracy that JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN and |
CHARLES H. WILK knew at the time they designed, marketed and implemented the
POINT tax shelters that the various clients who participated in the shelter would hkeiy be
audited by the IRS. Therefore, JEFFREY I.GREENSTEI}\? and CHARLES- H. WILK .
drafted and disseminated, and caused to be drafteld end dissem_in&fed, marketing material, -
transactional documents; é.hd legal c_pinicns desigﬁed to conceal from the IRS the facts |

UNITED STATES .;’\TTORNElY
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that first, each aspect of the POINT tax shelter, including the actions of the “offshore

investment fund” was Wh'o'lly‘ conceived, orchestrated, and directed by JETFREY L .
GREENSTEIN and CHARLES-H. WILK for the purpose of implem'enting a tax sheh:er,‘ _ |
and seoond, that the purpofied stocks that g_eneré;ted the o_ff-sett.ingl lzosse'si for POINT -
clients were in truth and faot non-existent. | |

A. Fraudu!ent POINT Marketmg Materlals

23.7 It was further a part of the conspiracy that in order to conceai and attempt to
conceal from the IRS the true nature of the POINT tax shelter, JEFFREY 1
GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK drafted and disseminated and caused to be
drafied and dlssemmated to POINT clleni"s and thelr advzsors false, frauduient and
mlsieadmg desorlptlons of the POINT transactxon in a marketing document entitled
“POINT Strategy,” knowing and expecting that such cllents and their adwsors would rely
upon the document to claim false and fraudulent tax benefits as well as in defense of any
audit before the IRS. The POINT Strategy document purportediy set forth the genesis
and business rationale for the POINT transaction. Accor_dm_g to the document, the
POINT Strategy was an investment opportunity. indepe‘ndently. feshioned by offshore
pai'ties to replicate a popular European inv'estment vehicle, and only fortuitbusly
discovered by Queiios The document described this supposed mvestment Opportumty as -
foilows |

a. A certain unnamed “offshore 1nvestment fund” desired to proﬂt from

rephcatmg a European financial product sold by large European ﬁnanmal 1nst1tut10ns

_known as “Covered Warrants,” “BLOCS,” or “HYPOS o

- b. In order to replicate this product the fund formed a partnershlp
entity known genericaliy as an SPV (“Special Purpose Vehicle”). Once the SPV was
formed, the fund contributed oertaln pubhcly traded “stocks” it purportedly owned to the
SPV The fund then caused the SPV to issue a “Covered Warrant” on the stocks in the
SPV The terms of the Covered Warrant gave the acqulrer of the Warrant the right to

purchase the SPV’S stocks in ﬁve years at a set przce in return for a iarge prem;um
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According to the POINT Strategy document, a “b'.ank” agrced.to subscribe to the Covered
Warrant and pald mllhons in premiums to the SPV Wlth thc intention of markctmg the
Warrant to other mvcstors - | ' |
C. Once the SPV was formcd fundcd and the Covered Warrant piaccd
With the bank, the fund with the assistance cf the bank, sought to seii the entirety of thc
SPV m’serests to potential investors with the goal of profiting from the sale. Accordmg to. _‘ -
the POINT Strategy documem Qucllos only became involved i in m.arkctmg this ‘
opportunxty because the bank, which had a pre-existing relationship with Quellos,
approached Qoelios to assist thefn in ﬁlarketing the SPV units to U.S, | .invcstors
24, Itwas furthera part of the conspiracy that JEFFRBY I. GREENSTEIN and
CHARLES H. WILK knew, in truth and fact, that contrary to whal was stated in the
POINT Strategy document, the “offshore investment fund” was not an independent _
investment fund who formed and marketed the SPV intérests with the desire to rcplicatc .a :
popular European investment vehicle, but father a shell corporation whose actions were
whoIIy controlled by JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN CHARLES H, WILK and their Euram
associates for the sole purpose of 1mpicmcntmg a tax shcltcr
25. It was further a part of the conspiracy that JEFFREY L GREENSTEIN and
CHARLES H. WILK knew in truth and fact, that contrary to what Was staled inthe -

POINT Strategy document, the “offshore mvestment fund” owned no stocks to contrzbute

to the SPVs. ) R
26. It was further a part of the conspiracy that JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN and
CHARLES H, WILK knew, in truth and fact, that contrsry to what was stated in the
POINT Stratcgy documcnt the “Covcred Wonant” was a sham papcr transaction, that no
“bank” subscribed to any Warrant, that no premiums were ever paid for the Warrant by
any such bank and that there was never any intent by any bank to markct the Warrant

27. It was further a part of the consplracy that JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and |
CHARLES H. WILK knew, in truth and fact, that contrary to what was stated in the
POINT Strategy document, Quellos was not fortultously introduced by the bank to thc L
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POINT Strategy and asked to assist in 1nerke'ting the product t to U.S. investors but, rather,

JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK eoneelved de51gned and
orchestrated the entire POINT strategy, 1neludmg the aettons of the purported “offshore -

investment fund,” and intended from the begmn:ng to market the strategy to U S,

taxpayers as a tax shelter. |
B. Fraudulent POINT Transaction Documents

28. It was further a part of the conspiracy that in order to conceal and attempt to
conceal the true nature of the ‘POINT tax shelter from the IRS, JEFFREY I
GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK drafted and executed and caused to be drafted
and executed false, frau_dulent and misleading eontracts and ag_r'eer'nents to docurnent the
various 'steps in the POINT transaction, knowing and expeeting that elients who
part101pated in POINT would rely upon such documents to clalm a false and fraudulent
tax benefit as well as in defense of any audit by the IRS. |

29. It was further a part of the conspiracy that JEFFREY L GREENSTEIN and
CHARLES H. WILK represented and caused to be represented to chents and others that
an Isle of Man entity known as Barnv;lle Ltd. (herelnafter “Bamvﬂle”) was the “offshore _
investment fund” that created the SPVs and contnbuted the loss generatmg stocks

30, Itwas further a part of the conspiracy that JEF FREY L GREENSTEIN and
CHARLES H. WILK caused to be drafted and executed a series of faise fraudulent and
misleading “Purehase Agreements” dated December 28, 1999 January 3, 2000 January
10, 2000, F ebruary 28, 2000, and June 6, 2000, through whlch Barnville purportedly
purchased more than $9 billion worth of stocks in a number of publicly traded teehnology |
eompames from another Isle of Man entxty known as Jackstones Ltd (herelnafter :
« ackstones™).

31, Itwas further a part of the consprracy that JEFFREY I GREENSTEIN and
CHARLBS H. WILK knew, in truth and fact, that the Purchase Agreements were false
freuduient and misleading in that J ackstones possessed no stocks to seII and Barnville had

no means to pay for any such stocks.
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32, Itwas further a part of the conspiracy that JEFFRE? L GREENSTEIN and B
CHARLES H. WILK in order to conceal the fact that Barnville never acquired any _'
stocks from J ackstones on the dates subscnbed toin the vanous Purchase Agreemente
and that the purchases were a Sham caused to be drafted and executed a “Securltles |
Lending Agreement” between Barnville and J ackstones According to the terrns of the .
Securities Lending Agreement, Barnvﬂle, on each day it purchased stocks from
J ackstones,.immediately loaned the same‘.stocks back toJ ackstones in fetum for “cash”
collateral purportedly equal to the purchase priee_. JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN and
CHARLES H. WILK knew and understoed that this 1ending arfangement would be .used
to prox}ide an explanation to the clients and their advisors, who, in turn, WOuld-provide the |
explanation to the IRS, as to the reason for the apparent lack of delivery or transfer ef aﬁy :
stocks and cash between brokerage accounts of Bémv_ilie and Jackstones at the time of
the purported purchase end, ther.efore, conceal the fact that Barnville never owned any
stocks in the first place. | -

33. It was further a part of the conspiracy that JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and -
CHARLES H. WILK in 2000 and 2001, drafted and executed and caused to be drafted

and executed false, fraudulent and misleading “Subscription Agreements” to the Global
Call Warrants that were purportedly issued by eaehof the SPVs associated with the o
POINT clients. 'Aecording to the “Subscription Agreement,” a 'company known as EA
Investment Services Limited subscribed to the Glebai Call Warrants and m retum paid a. :
“Subscription Price” to the SPVs. The purpoﬁed Subscriptien Price, in each instance,

amounted to millions of U.S. dollars, and, according to the Subscription Agreement, the

I payments were credited to an account at EA Investment Services Limited for the benefit

of each SPV. JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK knew, in truth and -
fact, that no subscription payments were ever made or going to be made, that EA - .
Investments Limited had neither the intention nor the abﬂlty to make any such payments
and that the “Subscription Agreemems” were shams 1mplemented solely to provide a

fraudulent business purpose for the transactlon
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C " False, Fraudulent and Mlsleadmg Information vaen to Legal Opmxon

- Writers.

34, Itwas further a part of the. conspzracy that JEFFREY I. GREENSTEII\T and
CHARLES H. WILK knew and understood that in order to induce clients to participate in .
POINT they wouid need to prov:de an opmlon from respected 1aw firms concluding that
the shelter would at least ‘more likely than not” survive a challenge from the IRS.

35. It was further a par't of the consp:racy that JEFF REY 1. GREENSTEIN and

_CHARLE‘S H. WILK knew and understood that in the event of an audit, these legal

opinions would likely be produced to the.IRS in defense of the audit and to avoid pos;siblllle'
penalties. . | _ | | o . | o | _
36. It was further a pért of the conspiracy fhat JEF FREY I. GREENSTEIN and
CHARLES H. WILK s¢cured_the paﬂiéipation of Law Firm C.S. & M. LLP and Law
Firm B.C. LLP to opine on the various POINT transactions imp‘]emente'd_.by the five
clients. Law Fifm C.S.& M.LLP opined' on the first four POIN"T transactions executed
by Queilos in 2000, _’speéiﬁcally, Law Firm C.S. & M. LLP opined (l)n'the POINT

trahs_aptions known as Torens', Reka, Burgundy., and Platinum. LaW Firm B.C.LLP

-opined on the last two POINT'transactiOns executed by Queilo's in 2001; specifically,

Law Flrm B C.LLP opmed on POINT transactlons known as thanlum and CobaIt Each -
0p1n10n conciuded that the POINT transaction would ‘more likely than not” survive a
challenge from the IRS. | o _ | _

37. It Was further a part of the conspiracy that in order to conceai and attempt to
conceal the true nature of the tax sheiter from the opmzon wrlt_ers and, ultimately, the IRS,
JEFFREY L. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK knoWingly and willfully made and
caused to be made false, frauduient and misleading representatlons to Law Firm C.5. &

M. LL? and Law Flrm B.C.LLP about the POINT transaction, knowmg that Law Flrm
C.S. & M.LLP and Law Firm B.C. LLP would rely upon their representatlons in order to

‘understand the PO.’{NT transactions and to render their “more likely than not” opinions.

These false, fraudulent and mlsleadmg representatlons included the following:

é_. JEFFREY L. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK falsely, _

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY ~ -
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fraudulently and misleadingly represented and caused to be represented that the source of
the losses utzhzed by the clients in the POINT transactrons was derrved from stoeks” in

weil known publicly traded eompanles that had been purchased by a nen»U S.

' 1nvestment fund” or “foreign mvestment fund » and contributed to the varlous SPVS

b. JEFFREY 1 GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. W}ILK falseiy, |
fraudulently and mlsleadmgly represented and caused to be represented that Barnville Was.‘
the 1ndependent ‘non-U.S. investment fund” or “fereagn mvestment fund” that formed the_,_ '
SPVs, and that BarnvrlIe formed the SPVs mdependent of any pre~conce1ved planto - |
utilize the SPVs fer a tax shelter spectﬁeeﬂy, that Barnvﬂle forrned the SPVs in order to
proﬁt from the issuance and sale of the “Covered Warrants.”

38, It was further a part of the conspiracy that JEFFREY L GREENSTEIN and -
CHARLES H. WILK prowded and caused to be provided to Law an CS. &M.LLP
and Law Firm B. C. LLP the same false fraudulent, and mlsleadmg POINT Strategy
document that they had provided to their clients, knowmg that the document was false -

fraudulent and misleading and knowing and expecting that the firms would rely upon the . -

document to understand the POINT transaction and to render their 0p1n10ns

39. It' was further a part of the conspiracy that }EFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN and "
CHARLES H. WILK provided and caused to be prov1ded to Law Frrm CS. & M..LLP v ..:
and Law Firm B.C. LLP the same false, fraudulent, and misleading transactional )
doenments, including the Purchase Agreements and the Securities Lending Agreement &'
between Barnville and Jaekstones, and the Subscription Agreements for the Covered

Warrants that they had provided to their clients, knowing that the transactional deenments |

were false, fraudulent and misleading, and knowing and expecting that the firms would

rely upon such documents to understand the POINT transaction and to render their . |

opinions.

40. It was further a part of the conspiracy that JEFFREY L. GREENSTEIN and -

CHARLES H. WILK provided and caused to be prov1ded to Law Firms C. S. & M. LLP )
and B.C. LLP, false fraudulent and m1sleadmg doeuments regarding the fees pald by the =
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Clients to implement the POIN T tax shelter strategy, in order to hide the actual amount of

fees they paid and thereby, make it faisely appear that the Cllents had a reasenable

‘potential of earning a profit from the POINT tax shelter strategy aside from the ta.x :

benefits. | ‘ | o S TSP

41. It wés further a_parf of the conspiracy that Law Firm C.S. & M. LLP and
Law Firm B.C. LLP provided JEFFREY I. _GREENSTEIN ‘an'd_ CHARLES H. WILK with
drafts of their opinion létters, an_d“reIied upon }EFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and

CHARLES H. WILK to provide corrections and edits to the_factual descriptio'ns of the

POINT transactions in the opinion letters. o

| 42. It was further a part of the conspiracy that as a result of their reliance upon:
JEFFREY 1. GMENSTEIN’S and CHARLES H. WILK’S representatlons regardmg the
POINT transactions, Law Flrm C.S. & M.LLP and Law Firm B C. LLP issued opmzon
letters that included false, frauduient and misleading descrzpnons of the POINT
transactions, | '

43. It was further a part of the consp1racy that JEFFREY L. GREENSTEIN and
CHARLES H. WILK prowded the fa}se frauduient and misleading oplmon letters issued
by Law F irm C. S.&M.LLP to chents and prospectwe chents in order to induce them to
participate in the transaction, knowmg that 1he opinion letters were false, frandulent, and
misleading. | | - |
D.  Kickbacks Paid to Matthew G. Krane, the Personal Attornev of Client H S..

44. Tt was further a part of the conspiracy that in 2001, CHARLES H. WILK
met Matthew G. Krane, a tax attorney and adv1sor to Client H S. CHARLES H. WILK

learned from Matthew G. Krane that Chent H. S antlclpated havmg more than $1 billion
in capital gains in 2001. o _ _
45. It was further a part of the conspiracy tha&, in 2001, jEFFREY L
GREENSTEIN, CHARLES H. WILK and Matthew G. Krane agreed to k1ckback 10
Matthew G. Krane a portion of the fees Quellos obtamed from Chent H.S.
46, Ttwas further a part of the conspiracy that in 2001,_JEFFREY I,
700 STeaRy S e 5530
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GREENSTEIN, CHARLES H WILK and Matthew G. Kraue did not dlscicse to C11ent

H.S. the kickback arrangement Instead bcgmnmg in or abcut March 2001 and

.eontxnumg through in or about October 2001 IEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN CHARLES H.
‘WILK and Matthew G. Krane drafted and executed and caused to be drafted and executed -

a series of false, fraudulent and misleading fee agreements between Chcnt H.S.and
Quellos, wherem Client H. S was led to believe that he Wculd pay a specific Quellcs
entity identified in the agreements as “Quellos Financial Advisors LLC” or “QFA”
apprcximately'$46 .milllicn_for. work in connection wtth the POINT tranSaction, whereas,
in truth and fact, JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK, knew that they
Would divert a majorlty of those fees to Matthew G. Krane, Chent H.8’s own attomey

47, Ttwas further a part of the consplracy that in or about October 2001,
CHARLES H. WILK introduced Matthew G Krane to J.S. and R.P cf Euram, and
requested that J.S. and R.P. assist Matthew G. Krane in setting up an offshore entity and
an offshore account for Matthew G. Krane.

48. It was further a part of the ccnsp1racy that in or about October 2001
Matthew G. Krane, with the assistance of a Swiss associate, B.H., appropriated an
existing offshore shell entity and changed its name to “QFS Consulting Ltd.”

49, It was further a part of the cchspiracy that in or about October 2001,
Matthew G. Krane, with the assistance of a Swiss asscciate, B.H., opc_ncd a bank acccuut
at Eu:opean American Investment Bank AG ai -Vicuna, Austria itz the nanie of QFS.
Consulting Ltd. | | |

50 Itwas further a part of the conspiracy that in or about October 2001,
JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK agreed that the kickback payments
for Matthew G. Krane would be pald not to Matthew G. Krane directly, but to QFS
Consulting L1d. | | : |

- 51, It was further a part of the ccnsp1racy that JEFFREY L GREENSTEIN
CHARLES H. WELK and Matthew G. Krane knew and intended that the name of the -

‘forezgn entlty and foreign account contrclied by Matthew G. Krane “QFS Consuiting -
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Ltd.”, appeared very similar to anuniber of Quellos entities that were commonly known
by acronyms startlng Wlth the Ietter “Q,” includmg but not Izmzted to “QFA” (Quellos
Financial Advisors, LLC) *QCS,” (Queﬂos Custorns Strategles LLC) “QBS,” (Quellos )
Brokerage Ser\rlces LLC) “QCM ” (Queilos Caprtal Management LP), -“QFV ” (Quellos |
Financial Ventures, LP), and “QCI” (Quellos Capltai Intematlonal) JEFFREY 1. -
GREENSTEIN, CHARLES H. WILK, and Matthew G. Krane knew and intended that by
using the name “QFS,” parties who' were unaware of the kickback arrangement, including
bank representatives overseeing the ﬂow.of funds, other advisors of Client HS, and‘ |
Client H.S. himself,' would be mislead into believing that fees that were in truth diverted

to Matthew G. Krane wasl paid to a Quellos entity consistent with the fee agreements

signed by Client H.S.

52. It was further a part of the conspiracy that on or about October 24 2001,
CHARLES H. WILK mstruoted a bank to wire approxmately $28 million into the “QFS” .
account in Vienna, Austria, knowing that the money was derived from fees Client H.S.
believed he was payi‘ng Quellos. | |

53. It was further a part of the eonsp;racy that on or about October 25, 2001
CHARLES H. WILK instructed R.P. to wire approx1mately $8 mllllon into the “QFS”

account in Vienna, Austria, knowing that the money was derlved from fees Chent H.S.

‘believed he was paymg Euram.

54, It was further a part of the conspiracy that in or about November 2001, after

the funds had already been transferred, JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN, CHARLES H.

WILK, and Matthew G. Krane exeeuied and caused to be executed a false fraudulent
and mzsleadmg fee sharmg agreement between Quellos and “QFS Consulting Ltd.” The
agreement speeiﬁed that Quellos would pay approxzmately $28 million to QFS

Consulting for “certain adv1sory and consuitmg services,” which ‘fdld not constitute the

provision of IegaI advice.”

55. Itwas further a part of the conspiracy that JEFF REY 1. GREENSTEIN |
CHARLES H. WILK, and Matthew G. Krane did not_exeeute any wr1t_ten agreements to
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document or otherwise account for the addmonal $8 mllhon that was Wn‘ed to QFS onor -
about October 25, 2001, | |
56. It was further a part of the consplracy that in 2001 and 2002, CHARLES H -
WILK knowmgiy and lelfully prov1ded and caused to be provzded false, fraudulent and |
mlslead;ng mformatlon to Law Firm B.C. LLP about the fees paid by Client H.S. in-
connection with the Tltamum transaction, mcludmg providing false, frauduient and
mzsleadmg fee calcuIann documents that excluded large portzons of fees pald to Queilos .
as well as the amounts paid to Matthew G. Krane. -
E. False and Fraudulent Tax Returns
"57. - Itwas further a part of the consplracy that JEF I“REY I. GREENSTEIN and
CHARLES H WILK caused Clients M.Z., R.J., B. I, M S, and H.S. to file false and

fraudulent income tax returns, spec:ﬁcaily Form 1040s, claiming capital losses from the
sale of the stocks within their _respecﬁlve SPVs which, in truth and fact, JEFFREY'I-'._ B
GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK knew.did‘no't .exist _

58. It was further a part of the conspiracy that the following Quellos chents
claimed the followmg false and fraudulent capltal losses on their Form 10403 as a result

of their participation in the POINT transactions:

Toxpayer | TaxYear o Biling €| PR Ruduiont Capiial Loss |
Client M.Z. 2000 1/12/02 | $122 million |
ClientR.J. - 2000 . 112/27/01 $133 million

Client B.J. 12000 - | 12/26/01 $178 million

Client M.S. 2000 - 4/15/01 $159 million

Client HS. - 2001 10/15/02 $730 million .

Client M.S. 2001 10/16/02 $59 million
F. False, Fraudulent, and Mlsleadmg Representatlons in Anticmat:on of and o

During POINT Clients” IRS Audits.
59. It was further a part of the conspiracy that sometime between 2003 and
2006, CHARLES H. WILK and JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN knew that Clients M. 7
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RJ.,BJ, M. S and H.S. were under or anticipated to be under IRS audit as a result of -
thetr pamclpatmn in the POINT tax sheIter strategy _

60. It was further a part of the consplraey that CHARLES H WILK begmnmg o
in 2003 and contmumg through 2005, When asked by the cl1ents and clients’. o o
representatlves for assistance responding to IRS inquiries or antlclpated IRS inquiries . -
about the POINT transactiOn, provided and caused to be previded to such clients the same
false, fraudulent, and misleading documents that purportedly described and docmﬁented |
the POINT transaction, 1nclud1ng the “POINT Strategy™ document and underiymg
transactional doeuments such as the stock Purchase Agreements between Barnville and
J ackstones the Securztzes Lending Agreement between Barnwlle and J ackstones and the
Warrant Subscription Agreements purportedly executed by the SPVs

61. It was a further part of the conspiracy that CHARLES H WILK beglnnzng
in 2003 and contmumg through 2005, when asked by clients and clients’ representatives .-
for assistance in responding to the IRS inqairies or anticipated IRS inquiries about the

POINT transaction, knowingly and willfully made and caused to be made faIse

fraudulent, and misleading statements to clients’ representatwes 1nclud1ng the followmg

a. Inor about March 2003, CHARLES H. WILK false}y, fraudulently

and mlsleadmgly represented and caused to be represented to attorneys for Clients R. i

and B.J. that the source of the eapltal losses_ derived through the POINT transactions were

shares of stock in & ntlmber of publicly traded companies that Barnville had corttributed to
the SPVs, | |

b In or about March 2003 CHARLES H. WILK faisely, fraudutently
and mlsleadmgiy represented and caused to be represented to attorneys for Clients R.J.

and B.J. that Barnville formed the SPVs and contrlbuted the securities to those SPVs for

an independent business purpose, i.e. to issue “Covered Warrants” for which the SPVs

received tens of millions of dollars in premiums. : _
c. Inor about June 2004, CHARLES H. WILK faiseiy, fraudu ently,

and mlsleadlngly represented and caused to be represented to the attorneys for Clients -
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R.J. and B.J. that the only reason Quelios was unable to provide independent

_ documentary evidence of the existence of stocks that were purportedly purchased by -

Barnvﬂle from J ackstones such as brokerage statements or conﬁrmattons was because :
QueIIos did not have access to the 1nternal records of Barnvﬂle and J ackstones whereas,
CHARLES H. WILK knew, in  truth and fact, that the real reason Quellos could not
provide such records was that no such stocks ever ex1sted .

d. In or about October 20{}4 in response to demands by attorneys for
Chents R.J. and B.J. that Quellos provide a Wntten explanation of the transactlon between b
Barnville and Jackstones to provide to the IRS, CHARLES H. WILK prowded a false,: |
fraudulent, and misleading wriften document in which he stetted that Buram introduced
Quellos to Barnville Who happened fo be holdlng e “stock portfoho” and that Barnville
contrlbuted the “Stock” to the SPVs, '

¢ 'On or about Novembcr 15, 2004 in response to demands by Clients
R J.and B.J. to JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN for a detalled step-by—step explanatxon of the
transactlon between Barnvﬂle and Jackstones, CHARLES H. WILK, prov1ded the clients
with a false, fraudulent, and misleading. Ietter in whxch he stated, among other thmgs that :

. [Quellos was] not party to the original transacttons (P_urchase Agreements and
Securities Lending Agreements) between Barnville and Jack‘stones‘, and,therefore, this -
part of our step-by-step explanation is based on documentation we have reviewed”, |
whereas, CHARLES H. WILK knew, in truth and fect that he and JEITREY I
GREENSTEIN were involved in the original transact1ons between Barnville and
Jackstones. CHARLES H. WILK knew that he and JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN devrsed
the sham sale and ann back arrangement between Barnvﬂle and Jackstones, that _
JEPFREY IR GRBENSTEIN, hlrnself selected the very stocks that were to be used for the
sham transactions, and CHARLES H. WILK and JEFFREYI GREENSTEIN directed -
C.D, 1S. andR.P. to approprrate the compames and execute the transactrons ' _ |

f On November 15 2004, CHARLES H WILK further wrote in the :
Ietter to Chents R J. and B. J that “{t]he Purchase Agreements between J ackstones (as
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seller) and Barnville (as ‘purchasér) reflect that Jackstones sold to Barnville the right to

‘beneficial ownership of shares . . . .” whereas CHARLES H. WILK knew, in ttu?;h and.

fact, that the Purchase Agreemen_ts "lfaiséi}'f' stated that actual shares were purchased, and

that Barnville engaged in neither a transaction for the “right to beneficial ownership of

shares” nor an actual stock purchéée since the entire transaction with Jackstones was a
sham. | _ | _ |
g.  Inorabout January 20045, CH.ARLES H. WILK, faisely,

fraudulently, and misleadingly represented to attofneys for Client H.S. that Barnville was
a “fund” fhat held a stock bortfolio and that this fund was “‘di‘s-cove_red” by Euram, giving
the false, fraudulent _énd misleading impfess_ion that Barnville heid actual stock and that
its stock portfolio pre~éxi's_ted Quéllos’s involvement with the company, whereas
CHARLES H. WILK knew, in truth and fact, that Bamvilie held no sto_ck., and that
JEFFREY I. GREENSTE_IN and CHARLES H. WILK, togéther.with Eurarlné
appropriéted Barnville and directed it to enter into sham stock plifchase agreements for
the sole pufpose of utilizing it in the POINT tax shelter stratégy.

62, _It was a further part of the conspiracy that béginning in or éboui April 2003
and continuing in br about October 2005 representatives df Clieﬁfs M.Z.,R.J., B.J. . , M.S,,
and H.S. responded to various IRS Infonnallon Document Requesis (also known as |
“IDRs™) which sought explanations and documents relating to their respective POINT
transactions by forwardmg to the IRS the'same false, fraudulent and mlsleadmg
documents that had earlier been provided or caused to be prov;ded by CHARLES H
WILK to such clients, 1nclud1ng the “POINT Strategy” document and/or undcrlymg
transacuonai documents such as the stock Purchase Agreements between Barnville and
J ackstones, the Securities Lendlng Agreement between Barnville and J ackstones, and the
Warrant Subscr_iption Agree_mehts purpoftedly entered into by the {/arious SPVs.

G. F aisea Fraudulent and Misleading Testimonv During Senate Investigation

63. - .If was further a pai”t of the conspiracy that by 2006, .the. IRS had expanded a
“promoter” examination of Quellos to include Quellos’ role in the POINT transactions.
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64, Ttwas further a part of the consparacy that in or about August 2006,

JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN inan effort to continue to h1de and conceal the true nature N

of the POINT tax shelter transactions from the IRS and others, knowmgly and wxlifuily
gave the foilowmg false, fraudulent, ‘and misleading tesizmony before the United States B
Senate Permanent Subcommittee on Invesugatlons (heremafter “PSI”) that was |
conduetmg an mvestlgatlon into, among other thmgs the POINT transact;ons

a. JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN testlﬁed that the circular stock purchase g |
and lendlng agreement entered into between Bamvﬂle and J ackstones through which the |
portfolio of loss stocks were generated was “not dissimilar to swaps or contraet for
differences or single sto_ck futures,” in an effort to mislead the PSI and others into
believing that BamVille and J acksteries engaged in legitimate derivative trades, whereas

JEFFREY L GREENSTEIN knew, in i:ruth and fact, that the Bamville/Jackstones

purchase and loan-back arrangement was a sham paper transaction.

b. JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN testified that the purported derwatzve
nature of these transactions between Barnvﬂle and Iaekstones was, to h_1s understanding,
disclosed in detail to clients and the clients’ advisors, whereas JEFFREY 1. | |
GREENSTEIN knew, in truth and faet that the chents and the clients advisors were never -
so informed, that none of the descr;ptzons of the POINT 1ransact10ns provided to the
clients and clients advisors described the POINT transactlon as such, that none of the
transactional documents provided to‘t.he clients and the clients” advisors deseribed the -
transactions betweeﬁi Barnville and J ackstones as such- that none of the oi)ini'on letters
issued by Law Fu‘m C.S. & M. LLP and Law Firm B.C. LLP described the Barnville and
Jackstones transaction as such, and, to the contrary, all representauons and materials
provided to the clients and client representatives were de31gned and contrived to mlslead :
them into believing that what Barnville purchased and contributed to the SPVs were
aetuai stock. o o o L _
| c.  JBFFREY I GREENSTEIN testified that the Covered Warrants
issued through each of the SPVs provided a potential .for profit for the clients who B
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participated in POINT, Whéreas JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN knew, in truth and féact 'that i
the Covered Warrants were sham transactlons and that no real prermums were pald or

were ever going to be pald and that the Coverod Warrants never prov1ded any proﬁt

potential to the. clients Who part;mpated in POINT because each trans_acnon was do&gned' o

to be unwound and_completed before the Clients could ever profit from such Coifered
Warrants. . |

IV. OVERT ACTS

65.  In furtherance of the conspiracy and to effect the iliegal objects ihereof

JEFFREY L. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK and their co- conspirators, known

and unknown, committed or caused to be committed the foilowmg overt acts, among
others; in the Western District of Washmgton and elsewhere: | |

a.  Beginning in or about August 4, 1999, and continuing through on or
about August 11, 1999, JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN and CHARILES H. WILK together
drafted and edited the “POINT Strategy” document.

b, Onorabout August 30, 1999, CHARLES. H WILK sen{ an email to.

Partner L.S. at Law Firm C.8. & M. LLP, attachlng the “POIN_T Strategy” documenl,

which, according to CHARLES H. WILK, described the POINT fr’ansaotion in its “most '

‘basic facts.”

c. = Onor about January 7 2000, CHARLES H. WILK w1th the
knowledge and consent of JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN, forwarded to Partner L.S. at Law
Firm C.S. & M LLP a document that purportedly descnbed how the offshore fund
ongmaﬁy obtamed its stocks. '

d.  Onorabout] anuary 14 2000, JEFFREY I GREENSTEIN sent an

email to C.D., attachlng a list of stocks that IEFFREY I GREENSTEIN selocted 10

generate the fake capital losses for the POINT transactzons
e.  Onor about January 19, 2000, JEFFREY L GREENSTEIN sent an
emazl to Partner L..S., of Law Firm C S. & M. LLP, fomfardlng a sohematlc that .

purportedly explamed the POINT transactlon in diagram form. The schematic described
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the transaction as iﬁvolving the transfer of “stock” from oneerltity ro ahother entity .'

f. On or about J anuary 20 2000, JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN sent an
email to an assoczate at Law Firm C.S. & M. LLP, who was assisting Partner L.S., |
attachmg ealculatrons purportedly demonstratmg the potentlal proﬁts and Iosses that
could be 1ncurred by a POINT investor from the Covered Warrants |

g On or about J anuary 24, 2000 JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN and -
CHARLES H. WILK received by facsimile from Partner L.S. of Law Firm C.S. & M
LLP,a draft of Law Firm C.S. & M. LLP s oplnlon letter regardmg the POINT |
fransaction. o '

h. On or about February 2, 2000 IEI‘FREY L. GREENSTEIN
CHARLES H. WILK, C.D., and 1.S. of Euram conducted a lelephone conference caiI to
discuss the POINT transaction, including, arnong other things, how Euram had “set up”
the c-ompan_ies to be used to generate the sham portfolio; hew the parties could increase
the size of the sham 'portfolio to accomrxiodate additional tax shelter cl'ients; how Partne_r' _
L.S. had not been fuily informed as to the manner in which the sham portfolio was .
created and the fact that the 1egal Opmmn issued by Partner L.S. regardmg POINT couid
be viewed by the IRS as h&vmg been * pred1cated on a fact that [Was] not true,” -
spemﬁcally, regardmg whether the SPVs owned any shares in stock ‘ B

i. On or about February 16, 2000, M P., an 1nd1v1dual in Britain, at the
direction of C.D. and J.S., who were, in turn, followmg the 1nstruct10ns of JEFFREY I

- GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK, met with the Isle of Man corporate

administrators of Barnvﬂle and J ackstones Durlng the meetlng, M.P. explained the
followmg, which he learned from J.S. and C.D.:

1. Barnville and Jackstones were both beneﬁcrally owned by one
individual, L, B and that individuals at Quellos and Euram, with the permission of L.B.,
sought to approprla‘re Barnvﬂle and J ackstones for the purpose of exeeutmg a tax shelter

strategy,

2. Barnville and Jackstones were being _asked, in fur“theranc_e of S
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this tax shelter strategy, to enter‘into a “virtual share traﬂsaetidn” in which BarnVilie buys
a portfolio of non-existent stocks from J aekstones and ] ackstones borrows those same
shares frorn Barnvﬂle resultlng in no actuai exchange of shares or exchange of money;

. 3. - MP acknowledged to the admmlstrators of Barnville and
J aokstones that over ume asa result of this transaction, one party would have a large debt
owed to the other on the books but that in the end because the two en‘utles were

beneficially owned by the same person the companles could eventually be merged and

| any debts ei;mmated from the books;

4.~ MP. stated that L.B. would benefit from allowmg the entities
to be utlllzed in this manner through the large fees that Euram was expectmg to earn as a
result of assrstmg in executing this transactlon because L.B. was a shareholder in Euram
and | .

5. . MP. agreed that for assisting in the POINT strategy, the
corporate administrators for each of the companies would receive a flat fee of £5000 in
addltlon to normal costs and disbursements ‘ |

3'._ On or about February 29, 2000 JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN emaﬂed
J. S and C. D another selectzon of stocks to be added to the sham portfolxo bemg ereated
be‘mfeen the two offshore eompames for use in the POINT transacuons -
| k.- On or about March 13, 2000, C.D. ema;ied JEFFREY .
GREENSTEIN that he was greatly disturbed by a meeimg he had with- an advisor for |

Client R.J. durmg which r‘a was made clear to C.D. that this advisor had no idea how the

loss stocks were geherated and C.D. demaﬁded a formal letter from Quellos aSSUring
Euram that they had fuIIy informed POINT ellents and their advisors of the manrer in
which the loss stocks were “created.” ' |

l.. - Onorabout March 13, 2000, J}ZFFRBYI GREENSTEIN responded
to C.D. in an emall stating that 1he advrsor C.D. hdd met with had no mvolvement in

advxsmg Client R. J. m the POI{NT transaemon and that he was conﬁdem that Partner L.S.

had fully advised the Chent

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
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m. On or about March 29 2000 CHARLES H WILK and JEFFREY I

'GREENSTEIN recewed from J. S proposed transaotlonal documents for the POINT

transaction, including the sham stock Purchase Agreements and the Securrtxes Lendmg
Agreement to be executed between Barnville and J ackstones |

0. Onorabout April 4, 2000, .. emailed CHARLES H. WILK and

_asked whether the tax shelter clients and their advisors had been fully mformed as to the -

‘true nature of the sham stock portfolio between Barnville and J ackstones as _promlsed.

CHARLES H. WILK responded that per the advice of Partner L._S.,'the clients should not
be informed about the nature of how the shares were created and how they were
contributed into the SPVs |

p. On or about Apr:l 3, 2000 J.S.,in response to requests by the
corporate administrator for Jackstones for written assurances from Quell 0s confirming
that the POINT clients and their adv’isors were fully informed of the nature of the share ;
trading .trensaetion between the two offshore comp'anies stated that they were not able to
provide any such wrrtten assurances. J.S, further explarned that no such written
assurances could be prowded because Quellos was sensitive about “having anythmg in -
writing which suggests that the mv.estment strategy contemplated»for the clientis
compietely'pre-ordained and exists only for the possibility of aehieving'a U.S. tax
advantege.” | | o | - . - _
g Inorabout April 2000, CHARLES H. WILK edited and caused to be
edited transeetional documents for the POTNT transaction, including the stock Purchase |
Agreement and the Securities Lending Agreement between Bamvﬁle and Jackstones.

o - On or about the followmg dates, }EFFREY L. (}REENSTEIN and
CHARLES H. WILK initiated and then unwound the followmg POINT 1ransaotlons in
order to generate the fake losses for the POINT clients:

Approx. Date - Approx. Date .| Client Name of Transaction
Initiated Unwound _ ' | : -~ '
April 28,2000 - | May 19,2000 ~  |M.Z. Torens
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700 STEWART STREET, SUITE 5228
. SEATTLE, WASHINGTON 98101 -

" Greenstein et al Indictment 26 o _' ' B o : S (206) 553-7970 -



[T TV VY

o0 ~3 [o

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

2

23
24

25

26
27
28

-Approx Date Approx. Date Client Name of Transaction
Initiated Unwound - .
| May 5, 2000 | June 5,2000 - RJ. Reka
May 10, 2000 June 5, 2000 - B.J. | Burgundy
Nov. 29, 2000 Dec, 18, 2000 M.S. Platihum
Sept. 24, 2001 Nov. 18, 2001 H.S. Titanium
1 Nov 7, 2001 Dec. 10, 2001 M.S. Cobalt

s.  On or about the following dates, JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and
CHARLES H. WILK caused Law Firm C.S. & M. LLP and Law Firm B.C. LLP to issue

false, fraudul_ent and misleading opinion letters to each of the POINT Clients as follows:

“holdings and forwarded the agreement to J.S. for signature. '

‘Greenstein et al Indictment 27

Approx. Date Law Firm | Transaction
Aug,. 29, 2000 Law Firm C. S$.& MLLP | Reka
Sept. 6, 2000 Law Firm C, S.& M LLP Burgundy
Sept. 6, 2000 Law Firm C. S.& MLLP - | Torens
Dec. 22, 2000 LawFirm C. S.& MLLP | Platinum
Dec. 14, 2001 Law Firm B.C.LLP Cobalt
Oct. 14, 2002 Law Firm B.C. LLP Titanium
't Beginning on or about September 9, 2001, and contmumg through

| September 20, 2001, CHARLES H. WILK informed J.S. through a series of emails and

teiephone conversations that in order for Euram to be paid for work .Qn Client H.S.’s
POINT transaction, they must enter into an advisory services agreefnent with Client H1.S.
despite the fact that Euram provided no advisory services to Client H.S.

u. On or about September 20, 2001, Matthew G. Krane and CHARLL‘S
H WILK drafted an advisory agreement between Euram and Client H.S., backdated to -
appear to have been effectuated on May 1, 2001 wherein Client H.S. purportedly agreed

to pay_ Euram fees for advising Client H.S. on European aspects of Client H.S.’s business

~

V. ‘Inor about October 2001, CHARLES H. WILK and Matthew G.

Krane 1elephoned I8. seekmg assistance in settmg up a non-U.S. corporation and bank

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
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account for Matthew G. Krane, . -

w.  On or about October 24 2001 CHARLES H WILK and Matthew
G Krane caused to be drafted and 31gned a ﬁnai fee agreement between QueHos and
Client H.S. in wh;oh Chent H S.agreed to pay a speezﬁc Queiios ermty more than $46
million in fees for their work on Client H. S’ s transaction, N

X.  On or about October 24, 2001, CHARLES H WILK by ernall
directed a bank representat:ve to divert approxamately $28 szllon of Client H.S.’s $46
million in fees that had prevzously been mstructed to go to Quellos to, instead, be
deposited into an account in the name of “QF S”.

y. o On or about October 24, 2001 and October 26, 2001 CHARLES H.
WILK, with the knowledge of JEFFREY L. GREENSTEIN directed J. S.and R.P.in

: emaﬂs to wzre transfer approximately $8 million in additional fees collected from Client

H.S, to an account in the name of “QFS” L _
z. On or about November 5, 2001 JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN signed
on behalf of Queﬂos a fee sphttlng agreement back-—dated to October 25 ' 2001 in whmh
Quellos agreed to pay “QFS Consultants Ltd.” approx1ma1.ely SZS million for services it
rendered as an 1ndependent advisor” in oonnectlon with Client H.S.’s transaotion
o .'aa.' On or about October 26,.2004, CHARLES_ H. WILK, i1 response to -
requests from the audit attorneys for Clierﬁs R.J. and B.J. for a written .expianation ofthe -
POINT transaction, emailed a documeht in which CHARLES H. WILK explained that
Euram introduced Quellos to. Barr_iville, and that Barnville had in ifs possession a poftfolio o |
of stock that was ultimately contributed to the SPV's for use by the clients,
' bb, Ooor about November 15, 2004, CHARLES_ .H. WILK, in response ‘
to further requests by Clients R.J .I and B._J . to JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN for a written
deseription and expiaaation of the POINT traﬁsactioﬁ, sent by faoaimile a.let'ter stating
that Quellos was hot a party'to the original transaction between Barnville and Jaekstdnes
but from an exammatmn of the documents it appeared that Bamwlle obtamed “rights to "
an underiylng poﬁfoho of stock.” |
UNITED STATES ATIORNEY
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cc. Onor about June 7' 2004, during a rriee“ting with representatives of
Client H. S. who were handhng an audit of Client H S., CHARLES H. WILK represented
and caused to be represented that he had discovered Bamvxlie durmg a trlp to London and
was told that it held Iosses in stocks that it could not use, | -

_ dd. On or about October 21, 2004, CHARLES H WILK caused to be
sent by email the “POINT Strategy” document purpomng to descnbe the POINT
transaction to the representatives of Client H.S. who were respondmg to an audit of the
POINT transaction by stete' taxirrg authorities and who were _eise anticipating an audit by '.
the IRS. _ _

_ e\e.. On or about January 24 and 25, 2005 CHARLES H. WILK met with
representatzves of Client H.8. and represented that Euram found Barnville and Jackstones;
that CHARLES H WILK gave instructions to Euram to find loss stocks and did not think
it would be so easy to find the loss stocks. CHARLES H. WILK further stated that while
he had no additional information regarding the exrstenee of the stocks, perhaps Client
H.S.’s representatives could write a Ierter fo Barnville and Jackstones asking for
cliocumentation'. CHARLES H. WILK additionally stated that he did not know what
e,dvice Euram ‘gave to Cli‘ent'H.S.. to earn ite fe_es and that he had simply referred Matthew . - N
G. Krane to Euranr and..they entered into a separate engagement. CHARLES H. WILK |
also represented that Euram got two fees. " | |

_ -1 On or about August 1,20006, JEFFREY L GREENSTEIN testlﬁed
under oath before the Permanent Subcommittee on Investrgatrons of the Connmttee on
Govemmental Affairs United States Senate regarding POINT. JEFFREY I,
GREENSTEiN testified that it appeared te him that'}eekstones and Barnville engaged in
a transeetion “not dissimilar to SWape or contract for differences or Single stock futures”,

that the Covered Warrants provided clients with a potential for profit, and that it was his

understanding that the clients and their advisors were made fully aware of the nature of

‘the POINT transactzon

66. In ﬂlrtheranee of the consplraey, and to accomplish one or more of its
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letters;

_obJects one or more of the conspzrators committed or caused to be eommztted the overt

acts deserzbed in Counts 2- 14 of this Supersedmg Indlctment
All n v1olanon of Title 18, Unlted States Code Seetlon 371

COUNTS 2-9
(Tax Evaswn)

67. The allegatlons set forth in paragraphs 1-65 of this Supersedrng Inchctment |
are meerporated and re- alleged as if fully set forth herem _ '

68.  From in or about June 1999 through at least about Oetober 2005, in the |
Western Dismct of Washington and elsewhere JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN and

' CHARLES H. WILK, unlawfully, W]llfully and knowingly did attempt to evade and |

defeat and aid and abet in the aftempt to evade and defeat a substantial part of the income a

) tax due and owing by the POINT tax shelter clients set forth below to the United States of

America for the calendar years set forth below by commrttrng and eausmg to be

committed the followmg affirmative acts, among others: _ B
a. preparmg and executlng and eausmg to be prepared and executed

false and fraudulent documents to decerve the IRS mcludlng premotmnal documents

purportmg to descrlbe the POINT transactron transactional doeuments and eprmon o "

b. | e’reating'and causing to be created entit.ies to be used in executing t_he
PO}."NT tax shelter transaction; | | |

c. preparing and ﬁlmg, and causmg 0 be prepared and ﬁled false and
fraudulent tax returns and -

d. taking varlous steps to attempt to defeat the audit of the POINT tax .
shelter clients by causing ellents representatwes to pr0v1de false fraudulent and

misleading information and documents to the IRS, purporting to deserlbe and doeum’ent

their respeetrve POINT transaetlons including, but not limited to the “POINT Strategy - o

document and/er underlymg transactional documents, such as the stock Purchase
Agreements between Barnvrlle and Jackstones, Seeurltres Lendmg Agreements between. o

Barnville and J aekstones and the Warrant Subseraptlon Agreements purportedly entered :
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into by the various SPVs.

Count Client Tax Returns Approx Approx.
_ Lo Amount of Date of -
Fraudulent Tax | Filing
. ‘ Savings

2 Client M.Z. | 2000 Form 1040 $24 million 1/12/02

3 | Client R.J. 2000 Form 1040 $18 million 12/27/01

4 Client R.J. 2003 Form 1040 $3 million 110/18/04

5 Client R.J. 2004 Form 1040 $2 million 10/18/05

6 Client B.J. | 2000 Form 1040 $36 million | 12/26/01
17 Client M.S.. | 2000 Form 1040 $32 million 4/15/01

g Client H.S. | 2001 Form 1040 $276 million 10/15/02

9 Client M.S. | 2001 Form 1040 $11 million 10/16/02

All in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7201 and Title 18, United
States Code Section 2.

COUNTS 10-14
(Counseling False Tax Filings)

69 The ailegatrons set forth in paragraphs 1-65 of this Superseding Indlctment
are mcoxporated and re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. o

70.  On or about the dates heremafter set forth, in the Western District of
Washington, and eléewhere, JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEiN and CHARLES H. WILK, cliidr
willfully aid and assist in, and procure, counsel, and advise the preparation and
presen_tation‘to the Internal Revenue Service, of U.S. Returns of Partnership Income,
Forms 1065, for the partnership entities and calendar years hereinafter specified. The
returns were false and fraudulent as to material matters, in that ihey represented and
caused to be represented that the partnership entities were entitled under the prewsmns of
the Internal Revenue laws to report the following eapztal losses in amounts heremafter
specified, whereas as JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK then and
there knew, the partnership entities were not enmled to report the capital losses in such

amounts '

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
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Count | Partnership | Tax Year Approx - Approx. amount of
: TR S Date of | Fraudulent Capital
. . ‘ Filing -~ | Loss
10 ' Torens - - 2000 ~  [10/24/01 . |$137 million"
_ x Limited IR oL SR
11 | Reka Limited | 2000 -1 10/15/01 $137 million
12 | Burgundy | 2000 | 10115/01 $158 million
P Limited S o '
13 | Titaniom [ 2001 | 10/15/02 $614 million
- Trading ' S _
. .1 Partners LLP . . . ‘
14 - Cobalt = 2001 6/17/02 | $54 million
- | Trading : ' :
Partners LLP

 All in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7206(2).

COUNTS 15-17
(Wire Fraud)

7 1. Beginning at a time unknown, buit no later than in or about June 1999 and
continuing until in or about January 2005, in Seattle Washmgton within the Western '
District of Washlngton and eisewhere J EFFREY L GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H.
WILK, together with others known and unknown did knowmgly devise and mtended to '
devise, and aided and abetted in devising, a scheme and artlﬁce to defraud and to obtam
money and property by means of materially false and fraudulent prctenses |
representat:ons, and promises, and concealment of material faets, knowmg that they were
false and fraudulent when made, and traasmitti_rig and causing te be traris_mitted certain
wire communications in interstate commerce for the purpose of executing the scheme.

- L_INTRODUCTION.,

72.  The allegations set forth in paragraphs 2-18 of thrs Supersedmg Indrctment
are mcorporated and re- aiieged as if quy set forth herem

: 1. ESSENCE OF THE -
SCHEME AND ARTIFICETO DEFRAUD

73, The essence of the Seheme and artrﬁce to defraud Was for JEFFREY I

GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H, WILK to desrgn market and execute a frauduient tax
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shelter known as POINT on behalf of wealthy individuals through Wthh they eould and
did earn mllhons of dollars i m fees, as weli as retain the wealthy clients as mvestors in o
Quellos’ various znvestrnent funds through which the company earned additional revenue.
The scheme and artlﬁce to defraud proceeded in two phases: o
a : Flrst in order to induce clients to partlelpate in'the fraudulent tax
shelter, JEFFERY I. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK provuied and caused to be
provxded false, fraudulent and misleading marketmg documents, transactlonal documents,
and false fraudulent and misleading legal opinion letters from nallonal law firms all of
which descrxbe_d the transaction as 1nvolvzng the purchase of partnerships that owned low
value/high basis “stocks,” whereas, JEFFREY L. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H‘.
WILK knew, in ftruth aold fact, that the fransaetions did not ihﬁol_ife any such stocks.

b. Second, JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H'. WILK were
aware that elients who execﬁted the POINT tax shelter strategy would likely be subject to |
IRS audit. As such, JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK, in
furtherance of the eontlnumg scheme and artifice to defraud provxded and eaused to be
prov1ded false, fraudulent and mlsleadmg representations and explanatxons aboui the
POINT transactions to the chents n response to their requests for assistance W1th audlts
and ant101pated audits in order to prevent detectlon of the scheme and artifice, and to
prevent the loss of such clients as investors.

74, Asa result of their scheme and artifice to defraud, a total of five individuals

~Clients M.Z., R.J., B.J L M.S., and H.S. - paid approXilnately $86 million in_' fees to

|| participate in POINT. Moreover, these clients also collectively invested teﬁs of millions

of dollars in varlous Quellos investment vehicles, earning Quellos substantial sums in

addltlonal fees

L MANNER AND MEANS OF THE
SCHEME AND ARTIFICE TO DEFRAUD.

75. _ The manner and means of the scheme and artifice to defraud are set forth i in '

paragraphs 20-65 of this Superseding Indletment which are 1neorporated and re- aHeged
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as if fully set forth herein.

IV, EXECUTION O]

F THE

SCHEME AND ARTIFICE 1

'O DEFRAUD.

76. On or ébblif the dates sef forth Be_low, at Sea_ttié, Washington, within the |

Western District of Washirigtoﬁ, and elsewhere, havli.ng devised the above'—descr_ibed o

scheme and artifice to defraud, JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK,

for the purpose of execu'ting this scheme and artifice to defrau_d, did knowingly dause to

be transmitted by wire communication in interstate or foreign commerce writings, signals,

Superseding Indictment.

picture, and sounds, each transmission of which constitutes a separate count of this

Co‘un.t Date Sender -

Recipient

Wire Transmission

15 10/21/04 | Employee

of ‘ uellos

Atiorney for
Client H.S.

Email sent from Seattle, _
Washington to Los Angeles,
California attaching the “POINT
Strategy” document, which
falsely, fraudulently and
misleadingly described the
POINT transaction as involving
the acquisition by the taxpayer
of high/basis low value “stock™

| that had been contributed toa

partnership by an “offshore
mnvestment fund.” o

CHARLES
| H. WILK

16 | 10/26/04

Afttorney for
Clients
B.J.

J.and -

Email sent from Seattle, -
Washington to New York, New

York attaching a document

entitled “Barnville,” which
falsely stated that Barnville .
contributed “stock” to the SPV
acquired by the clients.

CHARLES

17 11/15/04
 |HWILK

Clients R.J. and
B

Faxed letter sent from =
Washington D.C, to New York,
New York in which CHARLES:
H. WILK falsely suggests that
Quellos was not involved in the
original transaction between
Barnville and Jackstones; that
the documents appear to indicate

| that Jackstones sold to Barnville

“the right to beneficial - - -
ownership of shares . ...”

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343 and 2.

Greenstein et al Indictment 34
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COUNT 18
(Consplraey to Launder Monetary Instruments)

77. Begmmng at a time unknown, but no later than in or about Maroh 2001, and o
contmumg through in or a’oout January 2008, at Seattle, Washington, within the Westem
District of Washmgton, and eisewhere, MATTHEW G. KRANE, JEFFREY L 7
GREENSTEI&, and CHARLES H. WILK, together with othors known and unknown to
the Grand Jury, did knowingly combine, conspire, and agﬁ‘ee with each other to commit
offenses against the United States in violation of Title 18, United States Code Sectlon
1956, to wit, to knowmgly conduct and attcmpt to conduct a ﬁnan01a1 transactlon

affcotmg interstate and foreign commerce, which involved the proceeds of a spemﬁed

unlawful activity, that is Deprivation of Honest Services Wire Fraud, in violation of Title

18, United States Code, Sections 1343 and '1346, knowing that the transactions we're‘

-designed in whole or in part to conceal and disguise the nature, location, source,

ownerShip, and control of the proceeds of specified unlawfiul activity, and that while

conducting and attempting to conduct such financial transactlons knew that the property :

involved in the financial transaotlons represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful
activity, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1956(a)(1)(B)(1).
- ~ L_INTRODUCTION. o .

At vax_'ious times rélévant to this'Superséding Indictment: o

78.  The allegations set forth in patagraphs 2-18 of this Superseding Indfctmént |
are incofporated and re-alleged as if fully set foﬁh herein.
| 79.  Defendant MATTHEW G. KRANE was an attorney, licensed in the State
of Califomié. MATTHEW G. KRANE was a sole practitioner \&ho specialized in tho .
area of tax. | | | | o

80.  Client H.S. was a Los Angeles based business man. Begmnmg |
approx1mately in 1990 or 1991, M_ATTHEW G. KRANE was engaged by Client H S to
prowde tax adwoe and tax plannmg serv:ces to Client H. S. and Ckent H.S.’s busmess

81, BH.isa res1dent of Sw1tzer1and and a busmess assocnate of MATTHEW

G. KRANE.
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Ii. THE ESSENCE OF .THE SPECIFIED UNLAWFUL ACTIVITY:
DEPRIVATION OF HONEST SERVICES WIRE FRAUD.

- 82, Attorneys practicing law in Californie owe both a fiduciary duty to their 3 | .‘
clients and a duty of loyaity to eet in their clients’ best interests both financially and -
otherwrse and to comply with the Cailfornla Rules of Professional Conduct.

- 83, RuIe 3-310 of the California Rules of Professional Conduet requires that
members of the California Bar ¢ ‘shall not accept or contmue representatlon of a client
without providing written disclosure to the client where...the member has or had a legai
business, ﬁnanelal or professional interest in the subject matter of the representatron

84. - The essence of the Speelﬁed Unlawful Activity is that begmnmg in or about

January 2001 and contmumg through in or about December 2002, MATTHEW G.

KRANE, knowmgly and willfully devised and intended to devise a scheme and artrﬁce to
defraud, to obtain money and property by means of materraily false and fraudulent
pretenses, representations, promises, and omissions, and to deprive Client H.S. of his
intangible right to honest services as his attorney. | ‘ | |

85. Itwas part of the scheme and artiﬂce to defralrd that in late 2000, Client
H. S engaged MATTHEW G. KRANE to find a means to minimize antacrpated capltal
gains taxes stemming from a sale of certain of Chent H. S s assets | - ’

| '86. Tt was a further part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that sometime in N _

early 2001, MATTH_EW G. KRANE introduced Client H.S. to Quelios and CHARLES H.
WILK who, according to MATTHEW G. KIRANE,.had deVised a ﬁneneiai traﬁsaetio_n -
through which. Client HS could shelter his capital gaine. '

87. Itwasa further part of the scheme and artifice to '_defra'ud that MATTHEW_:_ | |
G. KRANE represented to Client H.S. that he Would need to pay approximately $46
million in fees to Quellos for their work in implementing fhe transaction. MATTHEW G
KRANE represented that the fees were reasonable because the transactxon would save
Client H.S. substantraﬂy more in taxes than it cost. _

88 Ttwasa further part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that Client H. S
relymg upon the advice and representatrons of MATTHEW G. KRANE that the o
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transaction was legltlmate and that the fees and costs were reasonable agreed to enter  :
into the tax shelter transactzon w1th Queiios ' |

89. It was a further part of the scheme and amﬁce to defraud that contrary to
What MATTHEW G. KRANE represented to Cllent H.S. about the fee arrangements

MATTHEW G. KRANE, JEFFREY L GREENS_TEIN, and CHARLES H. WILK had .
-.entered into a separate agreement whereby JEFFREY L GREENSTEIN and CHARLES

H. WILK promlsed to kickback to MATTHEW G. KRANE more than half of the fees
that Cllent H.S. agreed to pay Quellos,

- 90.  Itwas a further part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that MATTHEW
G. KRANE, contrary to his duties as Client H.8.’s attorney, never disclosed to Cllent H.S.
the kickback arrangement he had entered into with JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN and
CHARLES H, WILK. | |

91. It was a further part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that MATTHEW

G. KRANE knew about and partlclpated with CHARLES H. WILK and others in creatlng |
false and mxsleadmg documents to hide from the Internal Revenue Service and others the
true amount of fees and costs pald by Client H.S. to lake part in the tax shelter
transaction. | | |

' 92. It was a further part of the scheme and artifice tolde_fraud that in or about

October and November 2001, when Client H.S.’s tax shelter transaction was completed,

'C.HARLES H."WILK,' in Seattle, Washington, in fulfillment of the kickback arrangement

with MATTHEW G. KRANE, caused, by means of internaﬁohal wire transfers, the
followmg payments totahng approx:mately $36 million: | | ' |
a. On or about October 31, 2001 the transfer of approxunately $28
~ million from HSBC Bank in New York, New York, to European
American Investment Bank AG in Vierina Austr'ia for the benefit of
an account in the 1 name of QFS Consuitants Ltd -
b. | On or about October 25, 2001 the transfer of approxnnately $7. 5
million from HSBC Bank in New York, New York, io.European
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| ' American Inves.,t'fnemuBank AG in Viénna, Austria, which amount
- was ﬁlﬁhér transferred on dr about quember 1, 2001, to another
aécount _inJEurOpééi‘l"Amer.icah Im}eétmer“l’é Bank AGin Vienna,
- Austria for the beneﬁt of an account in the néme of QFS
~ Consultants, Ltd. | o SR ,
c. On or about November 7, 2001, the fransfef of apprbxirﬁately
© $600,000 from HSBC Bank in New York, New York, to Buropean

Amencan Investment Bank AG in Vlerma Austrla for the beneﬁt of |

an account in the name of QFS Consultants, Ltd

C. Manner and Means of the Conspiracy to Launder Monetary Instruments;

93.  The manner and means by which MATTHEW G. KRANE, JEFFREY L.

_ GREENSTEIN, CHARLES H. WILK, and their c'oconspiratbrs sought to accompﬁsh the

object of the conspiracy included, among other things, the following: _
94.  In or about October 2_001? CHARLES H. WILK, who was working in

Seattle, Washingtdn, introduced MATTHEW G. KRANE to J.S. aﬁd R.P.'in London, o

England, and' re_quesf,cd that J.S. and R.P. assist MATTHEW G. KRANE in establishing .

an offshore Company and an offshore bank 'account to h.oid MATTHEW G. KRANE’s |

share of fees generated from Client H.S.’s tax shelter transactlon o .

95.  Inor about October 2001, MATTHEW G. KRANE and B H. agreed thatin -

return fora. payment of $1 million, B.H. would act on behalf of MATTHEW G. KRANE

as the sole béneﬁcial owner of the offshore company to be set up through the assistance .
of 1.S. and R. P B. I—I further agreed with MATTHEW G. KRANE that he would manage
an offshore account in the name of this offshore company on MATTHEW G. KRANE S
behalf. _' | ' _

96. In o.r ab.out October 2001 B.H., through the aSsistaﬁce of R.P. and othérs
utihzed a corporate adm:mslrator based in Glbraitar to obtam the use of a shell cornpany o
known as Eldred Ltd mcorporated in the Brltlsh Virgin Islands. l.

' 9_7.; On or about October 24, 2001 at the behest of MATTHEW G. KRANE
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B.H. ‘instfueted the corporate administ’rator of Eldred Ltcl 'tolehange the name of the
company to QFS Consultants Ltd. QFS was snmlar to acronyms used by Varlous
subsidiaries of Quellos MATTI—IEW G. KRANE chose the name QFS 5o that documents _
regardmg fees that were, in truth, belng paid to MATTHEW G KRANE in fulﬁllment of | 2
the kickback arrangement with JEFFREY I GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H, WILK
would fraudulently appear to others as if they were be1ng pald to Quellos

98.  On or about October 24, 2001, at the behest of MATTHEW G. KRANE,
B.H. opened a bank account in Vienna, Austria, at European Amerlcan Investment Bank.
AG in the name of QFS. _

/99 On or about October 31, 2001, at the behest of MATTHEW G. KRANE
CHARLES H WILK from Seattle Washmgton emailed 1nstruet1ons to HSBC a bank in
New York, to transfer approximately $28 million from the fees generated from Client
H.S.’s tax shelter transactlon to the QF S account at European Amencan Investment Bank
AGin Vlenna Austria. |

100, On or about October 25, 2001 approximately $28 million in proeeeds from :
the above descmbed scheme and artifice to defraud as set forth in paragraphs 82 through

92, was transferred via w1re from an HSBC account in New_- York, New York, to an '

-l account in the name of QFS at European American lnveStment Bank AG in Vienna,

Austria.
101. Onc or about October 25, 2001 at the behest of MATTHEW G. KRANE and

consistent with the undlselosed fee sharmg agreement as deserlbed in above paragraphs
82 through 92, CHARLES H. WILK, Wzth the knowledge and consent of JEFFREY 1.
GREENSTEIN emailed from Sealile Washmgton mstruehons to Buram, to transfer -
approximately $8 million in additional fees generated {rom Chent H.S’s tax shelter |
transaction that had been held i in the name of Euram to the QFS account at European )
American Investment Bank AG in Vienna, Austria. _ |

~102.  On or about November 1 2001, in aceordance w:th the mstruetlons from
CHARLES H. WILK,‘Euram caused approxn_n_ately $7.5 million in proeeeds from the | |
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above described scheme and artifice to defraud as set forth'in paragraphs 82 through 92,
to be transferred from an account in the name of Euram at European Amerloan

Investment Bank AG in Vrenna Austma to the account in the name of QFS at European

Amerlcan Bank AGin Vienna Austrla

103.  On or about November 7, 2001 in accordance Wlth the instructions from i )
CHARLES H, WILK, Euram caused approx1matefy $6OO 000 in prooeeds from the above |
descrlbed scheme and artifice to defraud as set forth in paragraphs 82 through 92, to be
transferred from an account at HSBC in New York, New York to the account in the name
of QFS at European Amencan Investment Bank AGin Vienna; Austria. . o

104. In or about October 2001, in response to due diligence demands by the QFS
corporate adrninrstrators for explanations as to the source of the $36 million in fuﬁds held ©

by QFS, MATTHEW G. KRANE, CHARLES H. WILK and JEFFREY 1 GREENSTEIN

| agreed to execute a Wrrtten agrecmem wherem it was made to falsely appear that QFS,

and not MATTHEW G. KRANE obtamed the money as a result of a fee-sharing
agreement with Quellos for “non-legal” adv1sory services that QFS provrded in
connection with Client H.S.’s tax shelter transactlon

105, ‘Inor about October 2001 MATTHEW G. KRANE instructed B.H. to find ‘
someone wholly unrelated to Cllem H.S. and MATTHEW KRANE 1o sign the written AR |
fee- -sharing agreement on behalf of QFS. B.H. agreed to do so, an_d caused an
acquaintance in London, with no connections' to Client H.S.,' MATTHEW KRANE., or |
QFS, to sign the agreement on behalf of QFS. | |

106.. On or about November 5, 2001, B, H faxed from SWitzerland the written

| fee sharmg agreement between QFS and Quellos to Seaﬂle Washmgton for execution of

the agreement by Quellos. -

~ 107.  On or about November 5, 2001, }EFTREY L GREENSTEIN in Seattle _
Washmglon executed ‘ehe fee sharing agreement on behalf of Queiios and CHARLES H
WILK caused the agreement to be faxed back to B H in watzerland B H then -

submitted the executcd agreement to the QFS corporate admmistrators in fulﬁllment of
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their due diligence request.

108. By Jaﬁuary 2.002, the QF..S corporate a'dmini'st:ators continued to be ‘. B

dissatisfied with the explanation for the source of the $36 'iniilion held by QF S. Inor |

about J anuary 2002, in response to the corporate admlnlstrator S contmued due dlhgenee
requests MATTHEW G. KRANE and B.H. submmed and caused to be submitted a
false document that falsely explained 1hat the source of the QFS funds were fees from
compiex work done by B H. in connection with the sale of Client H.S.’s assets. In truth
B.H. had done no work in connection with the sale of Client H. S s assets |

109. In or about January 2002, MATTHEW G. KRANE caused to be
incorporated in the State of Delaware a new corporation known es_ Goldﬂuege} |
Partnerschaft LLC (heremaﬁer “Goldﬂuegel”) o

110.. In or about July 2002, MATTHEW G. KRANE caused to be Opened a new
bank account at European American Investment Bank AG in Vienna, Austria in the name
of Goldfluegel. _ | | -

111. On or about July 31, 2002, MATTHEW G. KRANE and B.H. instructed
European American Investment Bank AG to transfer apprommately $35 million in -
proceeds from the above described scheme and artifice to defraud held in the European
American Investment Bank AG’s QFS account to the new account in the name of
Goldfluegel. MATTHEW G. KRANE and B.H. agreed that the remaining approximately
$1 million in proceeds in the QF‘S account Was. for B.H.’s use in fulfiilment of B
MATTHEW G. KRANE’S agreement to pay B.H. for his znvolvement with QFS.

112 On or about the dates listed below MATTHEW KRANE caused the
foliowmg wire transfers from the European Amerlean Investment Bank AG’s account in
Vienna, Austma in the name of Goidﬂeugel to an account in the name of MATTHEW G.
KRANE at Charles Schwab & Company, Inc. in San Francisco, California. These |
monetary transactions mvolved proceeds from the above deserzbed scheme and ertaﬁee."
In an effort to disguise the purpose,. source,'and' hat_ure of these monetafy transaetions,

MATTHEW G. KRANE caused each of the wired funds to be aecofhpanied with a false
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| notation that these amounts were being paid to MATTHEW G. KRANE for “legal fees.”

Date of Wire Transfer Amount of Wire Transfer
November 18, 2004 $86,259.77

February 23, 2005 1$76,277.23

December 30, 2005 $124,939.52

April 12, 2006 . $137,288.68

September 5, 2006 $198,814.07

February 8, 2007 $164,426.22

June 11, 2007 $192,049.93

September 21, 2007 $65,587.06

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 195'6(h)._l

ALLEGATION OF FORFEITURE

113. The allegationé contained in Count 18 of this Superseding Indictment are

her’eby realleged and incorporated herein by reference for the purpose of aileging

forfeiture to the United States pursuant to Title 18 United States Code, Sectlon

982(a)(1)(A).

114. As a result of the money laundei'ihg offénse in violation of Title 18, .Unite'd

'States Code, Section 1956(h) as alleged in Count 1 above, the defendant MATTHEW G.

KRANE shall forfeit to the United States the sum of $36 million as proper‘cy involved i in ‘ :

or traceable to the aboVe»-described_money laundering violations.

115, If afay of the forfeitable property, as a result of any act or omission of the

Defendahts - |
a. caﬁﬁot be located upon the exercise of due diligenée
b..  has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a th1rd party,
c. has been piaced beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;
d. ~ has been substantlally diminished in value; or. .
“e.  has been commmgled with other property whlch cannot be

o subdmded without dxfﬁculty, ,
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' the United States of Amei"iéa_ shall b_é'entitied to forfeiture of substitute pfoperty pursuant .-

1
2 | to Title 21, United Statcs Codé Seétion'853(p) as incorporated by Title i8, United Statesu
3 Code Section 982(b)( 1) and Title 28, Un1ted States Code Sectxon 2461(0) mcludmg but | |
4 not hmned to the following: | ' '
5 “The residence 1ocated at:
1451 Kings Road
6 Los Angeles, Cahfomla 90069.
7 AII pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Sec‘uons 982 (a)(l)
8 o |
9 A TRUE BILL:
10 DATED: - 6/ 09/ 2.009
11
Signature of Forcperson redacted pursuant
12 to the policy of the Judicial Conference
| of the United States.
13
' FOREPERSON
14

Assistant United States Attorney -
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